

BCA Sweden – Buyer Terms and Conditions

February 2021

Contents

1.	SCO	PE, PURPOSE AND DEFINITIONS	4
	1.1	Definitions	4
	1.2	Purpose	4
	1.3	Scope	4
2.	BCA	AND THE BUYER	5
	2.1	BCA Values	5
	2.2	BCA Pledge	5
	2.3	The Buyer	5
3.	HO\	N THE BCA MARKETPLACE WORKS	6
	3.1	The Marketplace	6
	3.2	Auction Types	7
	3.3	Currency	7
	4.1	Who can Register?	8
	4.2	The Rules	8
	4.3	The Process	9
5.	THE V	EHICLE PRESENTATION	9
	5.1 Th	e Information made available to the Buyer	9
	6.1	Principles	10
	6.2	Foreign buyers purchasing cars from BCA Sweden	10
	6.3	Vehicle Documents	11
	7.1	Principles	11
8		PAYMENT OF THE PURCHASE	. 11
	8.1	Principles	11
	8.2	Cancellation request	12
	8.3	Other invoices debts	12
	8.4	Blocking/Unblocking of accounts	12
	8.5	Special dispositions	13
9	CLA	IMS: FAIRNESS AND TRANSPARENCY	. 13
	9.1	Principles	13
	9.2	When to submit a Claim	13
	9.3	How to submit a claim	14
	9.4	What can be considered part of a claim	14
	9.5	What happens once the Claim is accepted:	14

9.6	What cannot be part of a claim:	15
10 LIA	BILITY	16
10.1	Principle	16
11 PRI	VACY / DATA MANAGEMENT / INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY	16
11.1	Principle	16

1. SCOPE, PURPOSE AND DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions

In these terms and conditions the following definitions will apply:

Auction – the offering of vehicles by BCA for auction, whereby auctions will be held online via the auction platform used by BCA

- 1.1.1 BCA BCA Vehicle Remarketing AB.
- 1.1.2 Bid the offer amount in SEK or Euros which has been received by BCA for a vehicle and which BCA has confirmed with the bidder.
- 1.1.3 Registered User User having had a registration process completed and provided with credentials to access the BCA auctions.
- 1.1.4 Buyer Third party purchasers of vehicles from BCA auctions.
- 1.1.5 Fees The standard fees for BCAs regular services presented at the BCA website www.bca.com/sv/se
- 1.1.6 Auction Price The highest bid offered on the Auction made by a Buyer, against which the auction is closed.
- 1.1.7 Purchase Price The awarded bid (the Auction Price), plus Fees, vehicle registration tax, VAT and any agreed transport costs.
- 1.1.8 Vehicle any item presented and displayed by BCA on its auction websites or other sales documentation, or any item sold by BCA, consisting of passenger vehicles, commercial vehicles and other moveable property and components.
- 1.1.9 Vendor the original owner of the vehicle being offered for sale at the BCA auction.

1.2 Purpose

- 1.2.1 Welcome to BCA Sweden! This document aims to help you in your journey with BCA, by setting the rules of the marketplace and the principles of a good working relationship between BCA and the buyer.
- 1.2.2 These Terms & Conditions are for BCA Sweden, unless otherwise specified within this document. By reading and approving these rules, and once registered, you can purchase from BCA Sweden's auctions.
- 1.2.3 Both BCA and the community of trade buyers sourcing their vehicles through BCA are companies which must evolve quickly in a changing environment. Therefore, BCA reserves the right to amend these terms and conditions periodically and you will be notified of the update. Any amendments will reflect progress towards our ambition, which will remain the same: being your preferred source of used cars in Sweden or from Europe, by providing you easy access to the supply in any European country, through a trusted, efficient and transparent marketplace supported by services which are valuable for you.

1.3 Scope

- 1.3.1 These terms and conditions will be applied under Swedish legal jurisdiction.
- 1.3.2 These terms and conditions include provisions that present how BCA offers vehicles to be purchased by buyers, as well as the responsibilities and liability that BCA and the buyer have with each other.

2. BCA AND THE BUYER

2.1 BCA Values

2.1.1 Agreed principles are essential in order to secure the efficiency of the marketplace.

2.1.2 Transparency:

Each used vehicle is different and has a different history. BCA will probably never be able to know everything about the vehicles we sell, though we endeavour to discover and communicate all we can. Our three commitments are:

- a) to communicate and share all we know about a vehicle,
- b) to keep improving the level of what we know,
- c) to take responsibility for the information we have shared, should it prove wrong at a later stage.

2.1.3 Equal chances:

Equal chances means that, in an auction, any buyer must have the same chance to purchase a car than any other buyer, independent from the number of purchases the buyer makes, the country they are based in, or the sales channel he/she has opted for.

- 2.1.4 If important information must be shared during an auction by an auctioneer, it will be shared in Swedish and English. If there is a risk that the information is not understood, the vehicle will not be sold and will be reentered for auction in a later sale event.
- 2.1.5 BCA will not sell in bulk. We will sell the vehicles one by one, allowing each buyer to buy only one vehicle at a time.
- 2.1.6 BCA is obsessive about selecting honest buyers who follow the rules and respect the principles of the auction. For example buyers are expected to apply and follow the relevant VAT rules as well as only making legitimate claims.
- 2.1.7 BCA will stick to its commitments and expect the Buyer to do the same A marketplace can only work if all parties are reliable, honest and straightforward.

2.2 BCA Pledge

- 2.2.1 BCA will take responsibility for its actions and will deliver on what has been promised.
- 2.2.2 BCA will bring together a selection of trustworthy vendors and trustworthy buyers to provide efficient and reliable services to the automotive supply chain.
- 2.2.3 BCA will ensure that vehicle descriptions are of the highest quality in order to facilitate the smooth transfer of ownership from the vendor to the buyer.

2.3 The Buyer

- 2.3.1 The buyer will take responsibility for their actions and will deliver on what has been promised.
- 2.3.2 The buyer will purchase the vehicles for which they have submitted a winning bid.
- 2.3.3 The buyer will immediately make a payment, or initiate the process to make a payment, for the purchase of the vehicle where they had the winning bid.

- 2.3.4 Transport is mandatory to be arranged by BCA Sweden for all buyers. Transport is executed following full payment received of the car(s).
- 2.3.5 The buyer will quickly return the documents proving the compliance with these terms and conditions and other
- 2.3.6 external rules. These documents include, but are not limited to: CMR, Customs Declaration, Battery renting commitment if applicable.
- 2.3.7 Delays in providing the documentation referred to 2.3.4 may result in corresponding delays in the transport of the vehicle to the buyer and ultimately cancellation of the purchase.

3. HOW THE BCA MARKETPLACE WORKS

3.1 The Marketplace

- 3.1.1 The marketplace will ensure the application of equal chances towards the buyers at all time.
- 3.1.2 The marketplace provides the buyers with different auction types (see 3.2), each will ensure fairness towards equal chances of win for the buyer.
- 3.1.3 On its own open auctions, BCA will <u>never</u> provide any opportunity of bulk purchase for the buyers.
- 3.1.4 BCA will exclude Buyers from (further) participation in or access to Auctions in the event of failing to comply with contractual obligations towards BCA or any obligations arising from the participation in the Auction.
- 3.1.5 A Bidder is entitled to Bid on Vehicles at Auctions. A Bid is unconditional and irrevocable for a period of two working days after the end of the Bidding period.
- 3.1.6 BCA reserves the right, including after Bids have been made, to withdraw Vehicles from sale or Auction and to remedy mistakes, without the Bidder being entitled to derive any rights from his/her previous Bid.
- 3.1.7 The Vehicle purchase agreement between BCA and the Bidder will only be effective after BCA has accepted the Bid for the Vehicle from the Bidder by sending a confirmation of sale to the Buyer.
- 3.1.8 The sending of said confirmation of sale is deemed an acceptance of the Bidder's Bid, as a result of which the Bidder becomes the Buyer of the Vehicle.
- 3.1.9 The confirmation of sale is accompanied by an invoice to the Buyer for the amount of the Purchase Price, along with any costs and surcharges known at the time on the basis of the Fees.
- 3.1.10 The Buyer shall not be entitled to withdraw his/her Bid to purchase a Vehicle after the confirmation of sale has been sent by BCA and the purchase agreement has been concluded. If the Buyer nevertheless does so, BCA shall be entitled, at its discretion, to demand performance or termination of the purchase agreement with the Buyer
- 3.1.11 A Vehicle located on the BCA premises that is sold to the Buyer will have its ownership transferred to the Buyer by BCA, as soon as possible upon receipt of the full Purchase Price and costs incurred, by transferring the Vehicle registration to the name of the Buyer. From that point, the Vehicle will be held by BCA for the Buyer. The Buyer will be the owner of the Vehicle from that point on.
- 3.1.12 A Vehicle that is not located on the BCA premises but instead on the premises of a third party and that is sold to the Buyer will have its ownership transferred to the Buyer by BCA as soon as possible after receipt of the

full Purchase Price and costs incurred through the transfer by the Buyer of the registration of the Vehicle to the name of the Buyer. From that point, the Vehicle will be held for the Buyer. The Buyer will be the owner of the Vehicle from that point on.

3.2 Auction Types

- 3.2.1 Vehicles auctions typically fall into one of two categories : Online or Direct Purchase.
- 3.2.2 **Online auctions** are the default method for buying a vehicle at BCA. Automotive Professionals must register in advance as a user of BCA's websites, portals or other auction platforms. Registration must be carried out truthfully and only by authorised persons. See section 4 for further details.
- 3.2.3 **Direct Purchase** is where there is no bidding for a vehicle, but instead a fixed price and a guaranteed option to purchase at the advertised price. This can take the form of the BCA EuroShop.

Details of the format of the auction are available on the BCA website www.bca.com/sv/se

3.3 Currency

3.3.1 All prices and fees are normally stated in SEK and must be paid in SEK by Swedish buyers. BCA offers buyers registered outside Sweden to pay the invoice in Euro instead of SEK.

In cases where the buyer wishes to pay in Euros, the Euro amount determined by BCA will appear at the invoice. In case auction bids are placed in EURO the invoice must be paid in Euro by all buyers.

4. BUYER REGISTRATION

4.1 Who can Register?

- 4.1.1 Any Automotive professional wishing to take part in auctions organised by BCA must first register by completing and submitting the online registration form with required documents, VAT number, chamber of commerce and ID (mainly for export customers) attached to the submission. Proxies may also participate in BCA auctions, in the name of and on behalf of the Registered User (by creating different profiles within the account of the registered user on the BCA website).
- 4.1.2 Private individuals and legal entities other than automotive professionals must take part and accept certain Terms and Conditions, supplied upon request, in order to be able to take part at BCAs auctions.

4.2 The Rules

- 4.2.1 The validation of the Terms & Conditions transparently takes place during the registration process, through a tick-box upon the registration form submission.
- 4.2.2 The website registration and viewing of the vehicle pages and their offers is free of charge. The registration allows the newly Registered Users to also use the Auction service provided by the website. The registration is deemed to be complete when the procedure is performed correctly and a Username and Password are assigned.
- 4.2.3 BCA reserves the right, when deemed necessary, to ask for any further information prior to validating a registration or after the registration. Failing to provide any document requested, the account of the Automotive professional may be suspended, pending presentation of the document(s), or permanently suspended.
- 4.2.4 Once the registration is complete and validated, the Registered User will be able to change the assigned password. Registered Users are required to keep their access data private. Should a Registered User become aware of any unauthorised access or suspect misuse of their details, they must immediately inform BCA. Registered Users who do not meet these reporting requirements are responsible for any unauthorised use of their login details. If the misuse is promptly notified, BCA will activate a password-change procedure, temporarily suspending the account and freeing the Registered User from liability for the misuse of their login details.
- 4.2.5 Notwithstanding any duly validated Registration, BCA reserves the right to temporarily or permanently suspend the Registration and related access to Auctions for the following reasons including, but not limited to:
 - Failure to communicate or provide any document requested by BCA,
 - Failure to pay within 7 days after invoice date,
 - Improper behaviour towards BCA staff,
 - Disclosure of the personal and confidential credentials to third parties,
 - Proven or suspected fraud, on documentations or identify, or any unlawful behaviour,
 - Contact with a Seller.

4.2.6 BCA shall inform the Automotive Professional of the suspension of its account by any means.

4.3 The Process

- 4.3.1 The Automotive Professional duly completes the online Registration Form and uploads all required documents.
- 4.3.2 In the 24 working hours following the online submission of the form by the Automotive Professional, the Automotive Professional will be contacted by a BCA team member to complete and validate the registration.
- 4.3.3 Once the registration is validated, the Automotive professional will receive the following login details: 1) a "User Name" (also called a "Username"), 2) a "Password" which will be for the exclusive use of the Registered User to whom they were assigned.
 - BCA will provide any new Registered User with a training on the general use of the platform and functioning of the auctions. Only once the training has been provided will the access to the auctions be provided to the Registered User.
- 4.3.4 After the first purchase of the Registered User (now Buyer), BCA will contact the Buyer and provide a comprehensive after-sales support over the phone to ensure the vehicle can be made quickly available for delivery.

5. THE VEHICLE PRESENTATION

5.1 The Information made available to the Buyer

5.1.1 Our Marketplace is European, our Buyers are from all over Europe (and beyond). Therefore, it comes as only natural that any vehicle description also comes always in English.

Therefore, if any important last minute information about a vehicle must be shared before or during an auction, it will be shared in both Swedish and in English. If there is a risk that the information may not be understood, the vehicle will be removed from the sale and will be re-entered for auction in a later sale event.

- 5.1.2 BCA displays all its vehicles for sale on its sales platforms and commits to providing the following information to the buyers:
 - a. A description of the vehicle,
 - i. Make
 - ii. Model
 - iii. First Year of Registration
 - iv. Odometer Reading (+/- 50km)
 - v. Gearbox Type (Automatic/Manual)
 - vi. Fuel/Energy type (Petrol/Diesel/Full Electric/Alternative energies)
 - vii. Color of the Vehicle
 - viii. Number of seats (Identified during assessment, could differ from Vehicle Documents)
 - ix. Number of doors
 - x. Previous usage of the car (if known by BCA)
 - xi. Margin Regime of the car (Margin or Qualifying Net)
 - xii. Battery full purchase or battery leasing (in the vehicle title and in the description)
 - xiii. Presence or absence of vehicle documents at the moment of sale

- b. A list of the vehicle equipment (including, when available: Information on previous damages and COC).
- c. A set of commercial pictures (minimum 4 pictures),
- d. When available, a picture of last page on the history Service Book records. When the information is recorded digitally, a picture of the dashboard screen, displaying the Service History information, will be provided,
- e. When available, **a picture of the second key** (If no key available, this will be indicated in the comment box)
- f. **An Aesthetic appraisal report of the vehicle**, on both interior and exterior, with pictures of identified damages on the vehicles.
- 5.1.3 In addition, BCA will provide for all non-damaged, running vehicles, a visual and limited technical inspection carried out on vehicles. The information contained in the report is based on observations made by the member of BCA staff at the time of the inspection.

6. VEHICLE DELIVERY AND DOCUMENTATION

6.1 Principles

- 6.1.1 The transport of the vehicle can occur only after full payment of the due amount for the purchase of the car (this may include bank guarantees).
- 6.1.2 BCA Sweden offers a service of mandatory transport and delivery to the buyer's address, nationally and internationally, which provides the buyer with a complete aftersales peace of mind. This transport/delivery solution is mandatory for all cars sold through BCA Sweden. BCA Sweden holds the possibility to require a buyer located in Sweden to pick up a non-running vehicle from a location chosen by BCA.

6.2 Foreign buyers purchasing cars from BCA Sweden

- 6.2.1 Within the same country of destination, if the Buyer delivery address is different from the standard registered address of the Buyer, **the Buyer must complete the relevant document** ("Confirmation of Alternative Delivery Address"). By signing this document, the Buyer confirms and agrees:
 - The Buyer has requested that all vehicles and related documents/accessories are to be delivered to the alternative address, being located in the confines of Buyer's country of EU VAT registration.
 - The Buyer further agrees that the address provided is controlled or managed by the Buyer, or by an agent under instruction of the Buyer and is able to safely and securely take delivery of motor vehicles at this address.
 - The Buyer agrees to take full responsibility of all vehicles after delivery has been fulfilled to the specified receiving address. Regular claim conditions, according to terms & conditions of the Seller, still apply. CMR's must be returned to BCA and validated under standard procedures along with completing and returning a receipt of delivery form where required.
 - Stamp and signature on all CMR's must relate to the Buyer
- 6.2.2 Buyers from countries outside Sweden may be required to pay a VAT deposit amounting to 25% of the value of the vehicle. The deposit is refunded upon presentation of an official certificate that the vehicle has been imported to or registered in the country where the buyer is located.

6.2.3 In case of a force majeure event as defined by case law, the Buyer may request the cancellation of the sale by registered letter with acknowledgment of receipt where BCA is unable to deliver the Vehicle. In such a case, BCA undertakes to refund the price paid by the Purchaser. No Compensation may be claimed by the Buyer.

6.3 Vehicle Documents

6.3.1 BCA does not always hold the vehicle document at the moment of the vehicle sale.

In the instance where BCA does not have the documents at hand at the moment of the vehicle sale, this information will always be shared on the vehicle page both in Swedish and English.

- 6.3.2 Whenever BCA is in possession of the car documents at the moment of the vehicle sale, these documents will be sent to the Buyer as swiftly as possible after All payments related to the purchase are completed and the following documents has been sent to BCA by the buyer;
 - CMR signed and stamped by both BCA, the transporter and the buyer.
 - Customer Declaration.
- 6.3.3 BCA will consider that when vehicle documents are not being sent to the Buyer within 30 days following payment, and all required documents in 6.4.2 received from Buyer, this may form part of a Claim. In this case, no cancellation fee will be required from the Buyer and vehicle repatriation will be at full cost for BCA.

7. SERVICE FEES AND CHARGES

7.1 Principles

- 7.1.1 BCA has different fees depending type of auction. BCA's Fees can be viewed on the BCA website (www.bca.com/sv/se) and at the "price breakdown" summary at the auction. Fee's may be adjusted periodically by BCA. All Fees are exclusive of VAT.
- 7.1.2 BCA will charge the Buyers Fees equal to the Fees listed in the list of Fees in effect at the time of the Auction or the time at which services are provided by BCA.
- 7.1.3 Expenses incurred for the transport of Vehicles to the Buyer are always to be borne by the Buyer and will be invoiced by the transporting company for Swedish buyers and by BCA for Foreign buyers.
- 7.1.4 BCA is entitled to send electronic invoices.

8. PAYMENT OF THE PURCHASE

8.1 Principles

8.1.1 The full payment of the purchase must be done by the Buyer **strictly within given number of calendar days following the date of the vehicle invoice**, in the currency in which the vehicle was bought.

The payment is expected from the Buyer within 2 calendar day from the date of invoice.

- 8.1.2 BCA will issue a first payment reminder on the 3th calendar day after the invoice, and a 2nd payment reminder on the 5th calendar day after the invoice. In case the Buyer fails to execute the payment within 7 calendar days following the day of invoice, BCA reserves the right to cancel the sale and automatically block the account of the Buyer.
- 8.1.3 In case BCA uses the right to cancel the sale because the Buyer failed to execute the payment within 7 calendar days following the date of the invoice, the Buyer owes a cancellation fee of 5 000 SEK or 500 € per vehicle and will be automatically blocked.

8.2 Cancellation request

- 8.2.1 BCA understands that a mistake may happen and will therefore accept 1 cancellation request (1 vehicle) per calendar year without financial or blocking impact on the Buyers account. The buyer must request a purchase cancellation to BCA within 24 hours following the auction date. Failing to request the cancellation within the given 24h will imply validating the purchase, with BCA rightly expecting the full payment.
- 8.2.2 If the buyer contacts BCA within 24 hours after the auction, the following process then takes place:
 - In a given calendar year, the first cancellation request for a vehicle purchase will be executed without any penalty (valid for 1 vehicle). If multiple vehicles are purchased at the same time, the "free cancellation" will be applied only on the first of the purchased vehicles (in order of appearance in the auction(s)).
 - In a given calendar year, the second cancellation request for a vehicle purchase will be executed with a fee of 5 000 SEK or 500 €. The cancellation will only be accepted for 1 vehicle. If multiple vehicles are purchased at the same time, the cancellation will be applied only on the first of the purchased vehicles (in order of appearance in the auction(s).
 - In a given calendar year, the third cancellation request for a vehicle purchase will be automatically refused and the Buyer account blocked if the full payment is not received by the 7th calendar day following the invoice date. The buyers account will remain blocked until the vehicle invoice and fees (cancellation and unblocking fees) are paid in full.

8.3 Other invoices debts

8.3.1 For any other invoice debt, for which BCA will claim the related payments for services unpaid, the Buyers account will be blocked if the Buyers account presents more than 3 000 SEK or 300 € of payments overdue for a period greater than 30 calendar days.

8.4 Blocking/Unblocking of accounts

- 8.4.1 In occurrence of blocking or unblocking action(s) towards a Buyers account, the Buyer will be informed and the reason will be provided by the Business Partner to the Buyer.
- 8.4.2 The blocking action implies that the buyers accesses will automatically be **blocked in all the countries where** the Buyer has a valid BCA account.
- 8.4.3 The unblocking of the account occurs only with the payment of outstanding cancellation fees and/or other invoices debts PLUS an additional unblocking fee. The amount of the unblocking fee is 6 000 SEK or 600 €.

 The fee is applied per occurrence, not per car

8.4.4 The payment of the fee does not automatically imply the unblocking of the account. As a rule, BCA will charge 6 000 SEK or 600 € for unblocking. However, the reason of the initial blocking action will trigger the decision to unblock, entirely at the discretion of BCA (typically, failing to adhere to BCA rules of Ethics and VAT compliance will automatically imply a permanent blocking of the account).

8.5 Special dispositions

8.5.1 Process for EV vehicles subject to Battery Leasing Contracts: Along with the payment and as soon as the vehicle is purchased, the Buyer acknowledges the responsibility to take over the leasing agreement of the vehicle and undertake all necessary steps to formalize the transfer of ownership to his/her name.

9. CLAIMS: FAIRNESS AND TRANSPARENCY

9.1 Principles

- 9.1.1 BCA's ambition to the Buyers is to provide a response to solve any Claim within 5 working days after having received a Claim request with all relevant information.
- 9.1.2 BCA also commits to providing an acknowledgment to any claim within a maximum of 24 hours (working days) after the submission of the claim by the Buyer.
- 9.1.3 Claims will only be considered on the vehicle in its current state, no claim will be accepted following rework on the vehicle or resale of the vehicle.
- 9.1.4 If BCA is made aware about any previous damage prior to the sale, BCA will display the information in full transparency.
- 9.1.5 The buyer accepts that paint and bodywork may have been authorized out on several parts of the vehicle, which may have been performed due to paint damage/excessive paint wear and collision damage. These repairs are made according to the craft standards of Sweden which is considered acceptable.
- 9.1.6 For every Claim, the Buyer has an own risk excess of 3 500 SEK or 350 € excl. VAT for technical defects and 3 500 SEK or 350 € excl. VAT for body work damage.
- 9.1.7 Until the claim has been submitted and the decision reached, it is strongly advised for **the Buyer not to**proceed with any repair on the car as BCA will not cover the cost of repair if decision is then taken to cancel
 the sale and for BCA to repatriate the car. The Invoice of repairs organized by buyer through car mechanic
 could be asked in case of financial compensation accepted by BCA.

9.2 When to submit a Claim

9.2.1 A claim may be raised by the buyer up to 24 hours (working days) after the delivery of the car, and with a maximum of 50 additional kilometres on the car.

9.3 How to submit a claim

- 9.3.1 Claims are to be submitted through BCA's online form available on the website www.bca.com/sv/se in the "after-sales" section.
- 9.3.2 The form has to be filled-in and any relevant document/picture uploaded and attached to the form before submitting the claim. The SLA leadtimes of BCA for Claims response and resolution time are initiated only once the form is completed and submitted with all required documents.
- 9.3.3 Only the claims submitted through the online forms available on our websites will be accepted. For any question, your business partner is available for support in submitting the claim.

9.4 What can be considered part of a claim

9.4.1 Discrepancies in the vehicle description.

Errors in the vehicle description provided by BCA are deemed to be acceptable grounds for claim, for the following description items:

- Make
- Model
- First registration year
- Kilometre reading (with a tolerance of 50 km)
- Gearbox type (automatic/manual)
- Energy type: Petrol, Diesel, Full Electric, Alternative energies
- Colour of the vehicle (main colour)
- Number of seats (need to clarify when number of seats has been modified)
- Number of doors
- Margin regime on the car: Margin / VAT car
- Previous usage, if disclosed in vehicle description
- 9.4.2 The vehicles are not systematically thoroughly checked by either BCA or the vendor for previous damage, accidents, collisions that may have been repaired or remedied. The buyer accepts that it is unknown whether the vehicles offered have had damage/accident/collision.

Therefore, unannounced previous damage on the vehicle will not be deemed an acceptable ground for claim.

9.4.3 Any Claim related to damages that may have occurred during the transport delivery service of BCA must be notified on the CMR document and signed both by the Buyer and the Driver who delivered the vehicle(s).

9.5 What happens once the Claim is accepted:

- 9.3.1 BCA will provide the Buyer with a written confirmation of the Claim acceptance.
- 9.3.2 If the outcome of the claim implies any payment from BCA to the Buyer, this payment will occur within 4 working days after the confirmation of the claim submission outcome to the Buyer. If the buyer gives BCA additional time for payment BCA will follow normal payment terms and make the payment on the last day according to the buyers invoice.

- 9.3.3 In case of needed repair of the vehicle, BCA and the Buyer will coordinate and agree on the most efficient repair of the vehicle. BCA always holds the right to decide of where and by whom the vehicle should be repaired.
- 9.3.4 Depending on the nature of the complaint, an additional inspection by BCA may be required. BCA holds the right to instruct the buyer of where the car should be inspected.
- 9.5.6 If the complaint is correct (ie errors according to clause 4.2 in the terms of use can be ascertained), BCA and the Buyer can either agree on compensation to the Buyer, which means that the vehicle with all damage and in its existing condition is retained by the Buyer and no other claims are made on BCA alternatively then BCA can choose to credit the deal and take back the car.
- 9.5.7 If the vehicle complies with the standards and description stated at the time of purchase in the event of an additional inspection carried out by BCA, the complaint is declared invalid, the buyer bears the cost of the inspection.
- 9.5.8 BCA always holds the possibility to cancel a sale and credit only the purchase price and the buyer fees if BCA and the buyer cannot agree on a level of compensation.
- 9.5.9 In the event of a possible repossession of the vehicle from BCA's side, the Buyer's costs regarding the vehicle's price and the buyer's fee for the purchase from BCA are reimbursed. Any costs for repair, repair costs, troubleshooting or transport to the customer are not reimbursed.
- 9.5.10 Legal arguments will be solved in Swedish court.

9.6 What cannot be part of a claim:

- 9.6.1 Claims related to the general wear and tear of parts or to the vehicle in question will not be taken into account for ground to claim.
- 9.6.2 BCA will not provide any compensation for any defects, even hidden ones, that may be found on:
 - Vehicles with a mileage of more than 180,000 km or with at least ten (10) years of service from the Vehicle's first registration date.
 - Any vehicle identified as non-running or damaged vehicles.
- 9.6.3 The buyer is obliged to use Infotorg or Transportstyrelsen's websites in order to, on his own, secure engine size, engine power, fuel type, first day of registration, model year and gearbox is corresponding to the data at the auction. Except for the items listed in 9.4.1. BCA Sweden will not automatically be responsible for incorrect descriptions, that could have been discovered by the buyer through their own investigation of the data and information given. Any uncertainty for the specifications, photos or other info given at the BCAs auctions obliges the buyer to contact BCA in order to sort out potential uncertainties.
- 9.6.4 All vehicles at the auction are sold in the present condition during the actual sale. The present condition is described in the inspection report, presented at the auction.
- 9.6.5 All running vehicles have been test driven (if not specifically noted that is has not) for a short distance. No detailed check of mechanical components has been done. Therefore, the vehicles (non-runners excluded) have no known severe damages to engine, clutch, gearbox, differential, or other main mechanic parts except the damages or faults described in the inspection report. Minor defects can be present, such as defect wheel bearings, without being notified in the inspection report. Minor faults cannot be claimed for.

- 9.6.6 The vehicles have not been checked for error codes. Therefore error codes that are not known during the inspection cannot be claimed for.
- 9.6.7 BCA do not test the four wheel drive (4wd) system of the cars. Therefore problems with the 4wd system which has not been discovered during BCAs inspection cannot be claimed for.
- 9.6.8 The undercarriage of the vehicles has not been examined. Damages, that through an undercarriage examine, could have been discovered can therefore not be claimed for.
- 9.6.9 The inspection is optical and without any dismantling of parts, therefore claims on hidden parts will not be accepted.

10. LIABILITY

10.1 Principle

10.1.1 When a vehicle is sold in auction the ownership is transferred to BCA. The ownership is transferred to the Buyer by BCA as soon as possible after BCA has received the full payment. Immediately after the transfer of ownership, the Buyer will be liable for all risks and obligations pertaining to the Vehicle. The Buyer is responsible for insuring the vehicle against all possible damage to it.

11. PRIVACY / DATA MANAGEMENT / INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

11.1 Principle

- 11.1.1 We are committed to protecting and respecting your privacy. Everyone has rights with regards to the way in which their personal information is handled. During the course of our activities we will collect, store and process personal information about our customers, suppliers and other third parties, and we recognise that the correct and lawful treatment of this data will maintain confidence in the organisation and will provide for successful business operations.
- 11.1.2 The BCA privacy and data protection policy is stated in full on the BCA website (<u>www.bca.com/sv/se</u>).